HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 12, 2006
1:48 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:48:07 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Ji m Hol m

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representative Carl Moses
Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Richard Foster

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Paul Seat on; Kati e Shows, Staff,
Representative Paul Seaton; Melanie MIIhorn, Director,
Division of Ret i r ement and Benefits, Depar t ment of

Adm nistration; Virginia Ragle, Assistant Attorney General,
Labor and State Affairs, Departnment of Law, Jim Duncan,
Al aska State Enployees Association; Tom Harvey, Executive
Director, NEA- Al aska; Representati ve Et han Ber kow t z;
Representative John Harris

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Nancy Duez, Fairbanks Education Associ ation, Fairbanks

SUVMVARY

HB 475 "An Act describing contributions to the health
r ei mbur senent arr angenent plan for certain
t eachers and public enpl oyees; clarifying

eligibility for menbership in that heal th
rei nbursenent arrangenent plan; relating to the
"adm ni strator’ of t he Publ i c Enpl oyees’
Retirement System of Al aska; and providing for an
effective date."

HB 475 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



HB 399 "An Act establishing the office of elder fraud and
assistance; and relating to fraud invol ving ol der
Al askans. "
HB 399 was POSTPONED to a | ater date.

HB 470 "An Act relating to the nmandatory use of notor
vehi cl e headlights."

HB 470 was POSTPONED to a | ater date.
1:48: 12 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 475

"An Act describing contributions to the health
rei mbur senent arrangenent plan for certain teachers and
public enpl oyees; clarifying eligibility for menbership
in that health rei nbursement arrangenent plan; relating
to the 'admnistrator’ of the Public Enployees’
Retirement System of Alaska; and providing for an
effective date.”

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, sponsor of HB 475, referred to
the revisions in the sponsor statenent throughout his

testinmony (copy on file.) He addressed Nunber 6:
“Clarifies requirenents for non-vested Tier Il or Tier 111
enpl oyees who wish to transfer to Tier IV.” It establishes

a 12-nmonth window with an extension for another 12 nonths
A transferee would have to pay for their previous years
before they could count those years for a defined benefits
pl an.

Representative Kerttula asked for information about buying
back tinme for soneone that wants to transfer into a defined
contribution plan.

1: 50: 22 PM

Representati ve Seaton explained that there are two el enents.
One is sonmeone com ng back into the system Soneone who was
enpl oyed and had left the system would have to initiate a

buy back before 2010. The conversion from the defined
benefits plan to the defined contribution plan is only for
people who are not vested. The enployer nust nake a

sel ection, but first nust get an accounting of the person’'s
liability. It is aliability on enployers.

Representative Kerttula comented that the enployer has to
approve of the transfer. Representative Seaton said that is
correct - the enployer nust make a sel ection.

1: 53: 23 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



Represent ati ve Seat on addressed revision Nunber 7:
“Clarifies the basis for calculation enployer contribution
rates.”

KATI E SHOWS, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE PAUL SEATON, explained
this revision. The contribution rates have all been
previously calculated on the entire wage base. Wth the
adoption of a Tier 1V, enployees do not have the past
service cost associated with them This |anguage clarifies
that the past service cost rate that will be applied to the
enployer, will be applied to the entire wage base, which
means it wll include the salaries of both defined
contribution and defined benefit enployees. It is the sane
dol | ar anmount as the past service cost. She terned it an
accounting procedure. Representati ve Seaton added that it
woul d anortize the enployer’s past service cost rate over a
peri od of 25 years.

1:55:39 PM

Representati ve Seat on addressed Nunber 8: “dGves regulatory
authority to the appropriate party.” He related that it
reassigns authority to the conm ssioner.

Representative Seaton briefly addressed Nunber 9: “Changes
the basis for cal cul ati on HRA enpl oyer contributions to neet
IRS tax qualifications.” It would be 3 percent of the
average wage across all enployer groups. Everyone gets
exactly the sane contribution rate. Nunmber 10 addresses
changes to definitions.

Representati ve Seaton read Nunmber 11: “Disall ows enpl oynent
with NEA as counting towards Tier IV  retirenent
eligibility.”

1: 57: 23 PM

Nunber 12: “Establishes provisions for enployer termnation
of participation in the plan.” Currently an enployer can
termnate from the defined benefit program which was an
om ssion from SB 141

Nunber 13: “Clarifies defined benefit and defined
contribution conponents of the plan.” Number  14:
“Establishes adherence to IRS Ilimtations.” Those
[imtations are maxi mum anmounts that can be contributed by
an i ndividual . They could also apply to sonmeone who is

converting from a defined benefits plan to a defined
contribution plan.

1: 58: 13 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



Representative Seaton referred to a nmenorandum regardi ng the
di fferences between Version |, which is what canme out the
State Affairs Conmttee and Version L. The difference
between S and L is drafting errors. He noted that the Ice
MIller study helped to nmake sure everything was IRS
conpliant. He nentioned the sectionals available to read.

Co-Chair Meyer noted that all of that information is in
menber s’ packets.

1: 59: 28 PM

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked about the intent of the bill
regardi ng enployers in over-funded status. Representative
Seaton stated his intent that Sections 3, 38, 77, 79, and 80
apply only to enployers that are over funded. The
applications of these sections would not legally allow
enployers funding status to drop below 100 percent.
Representative Wyhrauch said that addresses it and an
amendnment is not needed.

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked about a letter ruling by the
IRS. He noted that the analysis on page 3 indicates that if
the anmendnent is not adopted, the IRS may not recognize and
apply the special rules of the Section 414 K structure,
which may result in an IRS plan determnation failure. He
asked for clarification. Representative Seaton explained
that after a plan is in place there will be a review by the
RS to determ ne conpliance. Representative Wyhrauch said
that runs contrary to what the Division says. He suggested
that the Division elaborate on this section.

2:02: 18 PM

Representative Kerttula asked if an enpl oyer opts out of the
defined contribution plan, what happens to enpl oyees. She
wondered if they would have to seek social security.
Representative Seaton responded that if an enployee opts
out, enployees imedi ately becone vested in the plan. He
suggested the Departnent of Retirenment and Benefits speak to
that issue. Representative Kerttula noted that this applies
only to nunicipalities and the state cannot opt out.
Representative Seaton said that is his understanding.

2: 04: 04 PM

MELANIE M LLHORN, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF RETIREVMENT AND
BENEFI TS, DEPARTIVENT CF ADM NI STRATI ON, addr essed
Representative Wyhrauch’s question about the Division
requiring rulings by the IRS in order to inplenent SB 141 on
July 1, 2006. She said the answer is no, but the Division
has worked closely with Ice MIler, a legal tax advisor, in
order to conformto IRS rulings. The Division is working
to obtain plan determ nation letters and private letter

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



rulings as a result of incorporating these provisions found
in HB 475. It takes tinme for the IRS to provide those. She
enphasi zed that the Division does not need any rulings right
Nnow.

Representative Kerttula restated her question about what
happens to enployees if the enployer opted out of the
defined contribution plan. M. MIIlhorn responded that they
woul d have to have sonme type of retirenment or pension system
in place, or social security could also satisfy that.

Ms. MIIhorn commented that the plan provisions need to be
adopted, and the bill needs to pass out of commttee and
beconme enacted by the legislature in order to avoid a plan
determi nation failure.

2: 08: 28 PM

Co- Chair Meyer asked what would happen if the bill does not
pass this session. He wondered if it could be passed
retroactive to July 1, 2006. Ms. MIlhorn replied that
there would be a nunber of adverse effects. The death and
disabilities benefits in Sections 73 and 77 would not be
funded properly because enpl oyers woul d not be funding them
Entitlenment disputes would arise. Co-Chair Meyer said his
concern is that this would go into effect July 1 and there
could be sonething wong with it. He wondered if an error
could be fixed retroactively or if it would be better to
post pone the effective date.

Ms. MIlhorn saw no advantage to postponing the bill. She
stressed that the changes enconpassed in HB 475 address al
of the issues for proper inplenentation.

VI RA NI A RAGLE, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LABOR AND STATE
AFFAI RS, DEPARTMENT OF LAW reported about survivor benefits
not being allowed under federal tax codes if this is not
changed on July 1. The constitution does not allow for
t hose benefits to be changed.

2:12: 37 PM

Representative Hawker recalled that the sane thing was said
this time |ast year when he suggested that the plan would
not qualify. It did not undergo a judicious review He
pointed to eleven statenents regarding failure to conply
with IRS determ nations. He noted two statenments regarding
no funding source for benefits if the bill does not pass.
He expressed concern and suggested deferring the effective
date pending a |l egal review.

Ms. MIlhorn responded that these provisions passed |ast

session are unique in the sense that this is a hybrid plan.
The legislature has conferred fixed and guaranteed benefits

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



for both the defined contribution plan and the defined

benefits plan. Last year it was noted that if there were a
defined benefit benefit, there would be challenges
associated with it. She related the legal tax review that
has been done by Ice Mller. Due diligence was conpleted
and every issue was identified. The Departnent of
Adm nistration is confortable with the bill. Representative
Hawker stressed that benefits should not be conferred unti

the conplexities and consequences of the bill are

under st ood.

2:17:45 PM

Representative Kerttula referred to Section 16, survivor
benefits. She wondered if the individual contribution would
be received when the pension runs out.

Ms. Ragle responded that the way it is structured now, that
is taken into account. A new survivor benefit is being
setup in lines 12-23, based on advice by legal council, to
make it a true hybrid plan, which would conply with the tax
code.

2:20:54 PM

Representative Kerttula pointed out that it is called a
pensi on. She wondered if that is the benefit. She asked
about enployer contributions. Ms. Ragle replied that

contributions would have to be nade by the enployer on
behal f of the enployee. Representative Kerttula summarized
that after the survivor pension is gone, the other account
is used. M. Ragle agreed.

Representative Kerttula asked if there are <changes in
occupational disability. Ms. Ragle replied that it is
slightly different in that it includes the concept that if
conparabl e enploynment is available outside of PERS, that
would also result in the end of occupation disability
benefits. Representative Kerttula asked if conparable work
were available, a person would not have to go off of
benefits. She wondered if the new change is nore of a
bright 1ine. Ms. Ragle said she does not know if it is a
bright line, but it fits the Division s definition of when
occupation disability benefits should end.

2:23: 58 PM

Ms. M Il horn provided an exanple of an Al aska Suprenme Court
decision, the Mrton Case, where a person receiving
disability benefits received a higher PERS disability

benefit. Representative Kerttula requested a copy of the
case.
2:25:21 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



Representative Kerttula inquired about Section 40 of the new
CS where “credited service” is not creditable under the
section. She asked what that applies to. M. Ragle replied
that in last year’s bill, SB 141, a nunber of provisions
were renoved. This one was not caught. It has to do with
rei nstatenent of service that is being taken out, effective
in 2010. Representative Kerttula asked if Ms. Ragle agreed
with Representative Seaton’s statenents about reinstatenent
paynents begun before 2010. M. Ragle said yes.

2:27:39 PM

NANCY DUEZ, FAI RBANKS EDUCATI ON ASSOCI ATI ON, FAI RBANKS,
expressed confusion about the bill. She enphasized that it
is too inportant an issue to rush. She said inplenentation
in 11 weeks is too short. She asked for a delay of SB 141
so that many questions could be answered. She questioned if
vested enpl oyees could becone eligible for social security
because they would then cone under the social security
wi ndfall elimnation provision in governnent pension offset.

2:30: 11 PM

TOM HARVEY, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, NEA-ALASKA, noted he has
provided witten testinony (copy on file). He pointed to an
error on page 2, line 3, of HB 475 regarding what
assunptions wll be used. He suggested that AS 24.08.036
places a specific burden on the |egislative body. He
questioned if the burden has been net. He mai ntai ned that
enpl oyer rates for past service costs will continue to rise
as anortized liability is applied to a shrinking payrol
paid to nenbers of the defined benefits plan. He suggested
that an increased liability has been created. He suggested
anmending HB 475 by delaying inplenmentation until July 1,
2008.

M. Harvey spoke of his recent experience going through the
| RS determ nation process. He suggested getting it right
before inplenmenting, instead of inplenenting and then going
through a process with the IRS. Hi s conpany applied for a
vol untary conpliance process with the IRS, which took al nost
two years. He suggested that the proposal to delay unti

2008 the effective date of the provision in SB 141 that
establishes a floor on enployer contributions, does not add

liability to the clainms or to the taxpayers. These are
unfunded plans, so sone enployers have overpaid and sone
have under pai d. If the date is delayed, those who have

underpaid don’t have to neet mninum contributions, and
l[iability of the plan is increased. He suggested | ooking at
a nethod for extension for those who have overpaid, and
having the rest pay a mninmumrate.

2: 36: 03 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



M. Harvey spoke to the death and disability issue. He was
surprised that the benefits were not the sane as the defined
benefits plan. He termed it a faulty decision. He
suggested that |ast year the sanme benefits were planned for
police and firefighters as those in the present plan. The
sponsor indicated that there would be no policy changes.

M. Harvey sought clarification about the calculation of
enpl oyer contribution rates. He wondered why past service
cost rate escalating to over 100 percent is a problem SB
141 changed the way the ad hoc post retirenent pension
adjustnment is awarded. It requires that the funds reach 105
per cent .

M. Harvey noted that he raised other questions in his
witten testinony. He observed that he supports the section
t hat addresses NEA because it no longer qualifies as a TRS

or PERS enployer. NEA now provides its own retirenent
system He said that NEA Alaska' s criticism is not a
reflection of the sponsor. | f the sponsor had been given

time to develop HB 238 last year, it could have led to a
hybrid plan that met approval. He requested that HB 475 be
anended to delay the inplenentation of SB 141 until July 1,
2008.

2:41: 56 PM

Co-Chair Chenault inquired if NEA was in favor of taking NEA
out of the bill because it has its own plan. M. Harvey
replied that NEA was covered by a defined benefits plan for
many years and is now covered by a defined contribution
pl an. The enpl oyees have requested to go back to a defined
benefits plan, but cost was too high. They regret the
decision to go to a defined contribution plan. He added
that NEA's staff is far nore highly conpensated than PERS
enpl oyees are.

2:43: 12 PM

JIM DUNCAN, ALASKA STATE EMPLOYEES ASSOCI ATION, stated
opposition to the defined contribution plan. He addressed
the question of the IRS determ nation. He said he heard M.
M Il horn say that a plan determ nation failure would have a
maj or adverse inpact on plan participants. He opined that
one cannot pre-judge what the RS will say about the defined

contribution plan conpliance. He spoke of his background
with taxes and financial planning. He warned that you never
know what an |IRS determ nation wll be. He concurred that

in July of 06, a contribution plan not in conpliance wll
have maj or adverse inpacts. He encouraged a |ater effective
date of at least a year. It may take a year to get a fina
determ nati on

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



2:47: 44 PM

Representative Kerttula asked what happens when there is a
plan determ nation failure by the IRS. M. Duncan replied
if nmenbers are not in conpliance, then enployer/enployee
contributions would both be taxable. That would be a major
inpact on plan participants and on future retirenent
benefits.

2:49: 08 PM

Representative Wyhrauch pointed out that |ast year there
was an issue about long and short-term costs to the state.
He wondered if the fiscal note analysis in the bill 1is
legally sufficient.

2:50: 58 PM

Ms. Ragle said it conplies wth statutory requirenents

Representati ve Weyhrauch ternmed the IRS a “black hole”. He
suggested an anendnent stating if the plan is not in
conpliance with the IRS then the effective date would be
deferred to a later date until they do conply. Ms. Ragle
responded that if the plan goes into effect on July 1, it is
hard to understand how that anmendnment would have effect

Representati ve Weyhrauch read the rest of the anmendnent that
said that enployees hired after June 30, 2006 would be

considered hired only if Section A becones a reality. | f
| RS i ssues a non-conpliance ruling, those enpl oyees woul d be
cover ed. Ms. Ragle said there still could be vesting

problems in the defined contribution plan from those who
have rights wunder that plan that they don't want to
relinquish. Representative Wyhrauch said the key question
is howto address the IRS ri sk.

2:53:48 PM

Representative Kerttula suggested that the plan could be
contingent upon favorable ruling by the IRS. Ms. Ragle
replied that the effective date would have to be del ayed for
that to work. Representative Kerttula agreed that it could
be del ayed until the ruling fromthe IRS

Representative Kelly suggested notifying new enpl oyees of
the possible risks and the pending IRS ruling, and not
del aying the bill.

2:56: 36 PM

MVs. Duez restated her question regarding enployees’
ineligibility for social security when an enployer opted
out. Alaska is a non-social security state and as of July
1, will be the only non-social security state with a defined

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



contribution system She asked what the inpact on enpl oyees
woul d be.

Ms. MIIlhorn responded that now, under the defined benefits
pl an, enployees are subject to the wndfall elimnation
provision and the governnment pension offset. Once they
| eave they are still subject to these provisions. | f they
wor ked for an enployer that participates in social security,
t hey woul d continue to earn benefits under social security.

Ms. Duez hoped that this concern is being addressed. She
wi shed for nore clarification when the enployer decides not
to participate. Ms. MIlhorn said she would call M. Duez
and discuss it further.

3:00: 24 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked for the results of that conversation
to be shared with the commttee.

Ms. MIlhorn noted that the Division has received expert tax
advi ce. She addressed what would happen if this plan does

not work. It would result in a plan qualification failure.
At that point renmedies would be worked out with the IRS to
correct those issues. She expressed confidence in

proceedi ng because of the excellent I|egal advice the
Di vi sion has received.

HB 475 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

3:02: 24 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 399

"An Act establishing the office of elder fraud and
assistance; and relating to fraud involving older
Al askans. "

HB 399 was postponed to a |ater date.

HOUSE BILL NO._ 470

"An Act relating to the mandatory use of notor vehicle
headl i ghts."

HB 470 was POSTPONED to a | ater date.
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:02 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 12/ 06 1:48 P. M



